
 
 
 
    
 
 
 

CITY OF SIGNAL HILL 
OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 
2175 Cherry Avenue  Signal Hill, California 90755-3799 

 
THE CITY OF SIGNAL HILL 

WELCOMES YOU TO A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE  
OVERSIGHT BOARD 

August 23, 2012 
6:00 p.m. 

 
The City of Signal Hill appreciates your attendance.  Citizen interest provides the 
Oversight Board with valuable information regarding issues of the community.  In 
addition, meetings are streamed live on our website at www.cityofsignalhill.org, and are 
televised at 7:00 a.m., 2:00 p.m., and 7:00 p.m. every day following the City Council 
meeting on Charter Communications Channel 3, and Verizon FiOS Channel 38. 
 
Meetings commence at 6:00 p.m.  There is a public comment period at the beginning 
of the regular meeting, as well as the opportunity to comment on each agenda item as 
it arises.  Any meeting may be adjourned to a time and place stated in the order of 
adjournment. 
 
The agenda is posted 72 hours prior to each meeting on the City’s website and outside 
of City Hall and available at each meeting.  The agenda and related reports are also 
available for review online and at the City Clerk's office and Library prior to the 
meeting.  Agenda and staff reports are also available at our website at 
www.cityofsignalhill.org.   

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3, each agenda for a regular meeting 
shall provide an item entitled “Public Comment” after Roll Call and the Pledge of 
Allegiance and before any business is transacted.  The purpose of such item shall be 
to provide an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Oversight 
Board on agenda matters as well as on items of general interest to the public that are 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Oversight Board.  Speakers shall be limited 
to three (3) minutes.  You are encouraged (but not required) to complete a speaker 
card prior to  the item being considered, and give the card to a Successor Agency staff 
member.  The purpose of this card is to ensure speakers are correctly identified in the 
minutes.  However, completion of a speaker card is voluntary, and is not a requirement 
to address the Oversight Board.  The cards are provided at the rear of the Council 
Chamber.  Please direct your comments or questions to the Oversight Board. 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
(1)  CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 P.M. 

 
(2) ROLL CALL 
 

 CHAIR HAUBERT 
 VICE CHAIR NOLL 

MEMBER CHERNISS 
MEMBER GABEL 
MEMBER WAROT 
MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
MEMBER YU 

 
(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
(4) PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS ON OR OFF THE AGENDA 
 
(5) CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORTS 
 

a.  Adopt Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
 

 Summary:  Pursuant to AB1x 26, codified as Health and Safety Code Section 
34172, the Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency was dissolved effective February 
1, 2012.  The Oversight Board is required to adopt a Recognized Obligation 
Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) every six months.  This ROPS covers the period 
from January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013. 
 
Recommendation:  Waive further reading and adopt the resolution adopting a 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) pursuant to Health and 
Safety Code §34177 and transmitting the ROPS to the County Auditor-
Controller, the Department of Finance and the State Controller. 

 
b.  Title Correction for 2003 Transfer of Alamitos Pumping Plant Property 

 
 Summary:  The need for a technical title correction has arisen in connection 

with the 2003 “Takeover Agreement” through which County Sanitation District 
No. 29 (the “District”) assumed ownership and maintenance over Signal Hill’s 
Sewage Facilities.  As part of the 2003 Takeover Agreement, the City 
transferred title of the Alamitos Pumping Plant (2001 Alamitos Avenue; 
“Property”) to the District, but title to the Property actually was held by the 
Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency.  The District now needs to clear its title to 
the Property in order to qualify for a low-interest state clean water loan. 
 
Recommendation:  Waive further reading and adopt the resolution directing and 
approving the transfer of governmental property at 2001 Alamitos Avenue to 
correct a 2003 title error. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

(6) CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

a.  Minutes of the Following Meeting(s) 
 

Regular Meeting of the Oversight Board, June 14, 2012 
 

 Recommendation:  Approve. 
 
(7) OVERSIGHT AGENDA – NEW BUSINESS 
 

MEMBER YU 
MEMBER WILLIAMSON 

 MEMBER WAROT 
 MEMBER GABEL 
 MEMBER CHERNISS 
 VICE CHAIR NOLL 
 CHAIR HAUBERT 
 

 (8)  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regular meeting of the Signal Hill Oversight Board is Thursday, September 
13, 2012 at 6:00 p.m., to be held in the Council Chamber of City Hall, 2175 Cherry 
Avenue, Signal Hill, CA, 90755. 

 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 
Routine matters are handled most quickly and efficiently if contact is made with the 
Successor Agency staff.  However, if you would like to request that a matter be 
presented for Oversight Board consideration, you may do so by writing to the 
Successor Agency, Oversight Board or Chief Administrative Officer.  The deadline for 
agenda items is 12 noon one week before the scheduled meeting.  The complete 
agenda, including back up materials is available on the City website. 
 
If you need special assistance beyond what is normally provided to participate in 
Oversight Board meetings, the Successor Agency staff will attempt to accommodate 
you in every reasonable manner.  Please call the City Clerk's office at (562) 989-7305 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular needs and to 
determine if accommodation is feasible. 



 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF SIGNAL HILL 
OVERSIGHT BOARD 

2175 Cherry Avenue ● Signal Hill, California 90755-3799 
 
August 23, 2012 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
TO:   HONORABLE CHAIR 

AND MEMBERS OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
     
FROM:   KENNETH C. FARFSING 
  CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPT RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
 
Summary: 
 
Pursuant to AB1x 26, codified as Health and Safety Code Section 34172, the Signal Hill 
Redevelopment Agency (“SHRA”) was dissolved effective February 1, 2012.  The Oversight 
Board is required to adopt a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (“ROPS”) every six 
months.  This ROPS covers the period from January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013. 
 
Recommendations: 
 

1) Waive further reading and adopt the following resolution, entitled: 
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE CITY OF SIGNAL 

HILL, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT 
SCHEDULE (ROPS) PURSUANT TO HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE § 
34177 AND TRANSMITTING THE ROPS TO THE COUNTY AUDITOR-
CONTROLLER, THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND THE STATE 
CONTROLLER  

  
Fiscal Impact: 
 
The total of the ROPS for January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013 is $12,227,501.  This amount 
includes bond debt service payments and payments on contractual obligations. It includes 
an administrative cost allowance of $215,517 and project costs of $552,984.  
 
Background and Analysis: 



ROPS 
August 23, 2012 
Page 2 
 
   
The ROPS is required to be approved by the City Council as Successor Agency and 
forwarded to the Oversight Board (OB) for its approval.  The payment schedule 
representing the period from January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013 is required so that 
pledges of revenue associated with enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment 
agency are honored.  The payment schedules are required to be posted on the Successor 
Agency’s website.  The Staff of the Successor Agency (SA) is also required to provide the 
County Auditor-Controller (CAC), and the State Department of Finance (DOF) the adopted 
ROPS. 
 
Pursuant to the approval of AB 1484, there are new requirements to the process and timing 
of the ROPS.  The third ROPS is due no later than September 1, 2012.  Subsequent 
ROPS, beginning with the fourth ROPS covering the period from July – December 2013 are 
due to the CAC and DOF no fewer than 90 days prior to the semiannual Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) property fund distribution.  The schedule for submission 
of the ROPS is as follows: 
 

• October 4th – For the January 2nd RPTTF distribution; and 
 

• March 3rd – For the June 1st RPTTF distribution. 
 
If the ROPS are not filed within the specified timeframe, then legal actions can be taken by 
the creditors of the Successor Agency, the DOF, and affected taxing entities to file suit for 
writ of mandate to compel a Successor Agency to adopt a ROPS and exposes the SA to 
penalties.  The community may be subject to $10,000 per day civil fines.  In addition, if the 
SA does not submit the ROPS within 10 days of the deadline, it may result in a 25% 
reduction of a SA’s maximum administrative cost allowance for the period covered by the 
delinquent ROPS.  The DOF may also direct the CAC to withhold payments to enforceable 
obligations. 
 
Under AB 1484, the DOF has five days to request to review an enforceable obligation listed 
on the ROPS and must make a determination of the enforceable obligations and the 
amounts and funding sources no later than 45 days after the ROPS was submitted by a 
Successor Agency.   In addition, AB 1484 gives the SA a five day window to request an 
opportunity to meet and confer on additional disputed items once the SA has received the 
DOF determination. 
 
Previously under the dissolution bill, the CAC was required to “certify” the ROPS.  Under 
AB 1484, the CAC is authorized to review the ROPS and may object to any item or funding 
source.  The CAC is required to submit notice to the DOF, the SA and the OB 60 days prior 
to the distribution date for money.  If the SA and OB dispute the rejected item, then the 
DOF is responsible for determining what will be included on the applicable ROPS. 
 
The previous major disputed items (not approved by the DOF) are as follows:  $3 million 
repayment to City of development impact fees, use of the library bond proceeds, repayment 
of loan between the City and Agency, SERAF Loan, CarMax deposit, and use of $3.3 
million in fund balance of low and moderate income housing funds for existing housing 



ROPS 
August 23, 2012 
Page 3 
 
projects.   Pursuant to AB 1484, there appears to be a mechanism to pay back loans 
between the City and Agency and loans made from the former Agency’s low and moderate 
income housing fund.   However, AB 1484 requires completion of new procedures for 
reviewing cash assets of the dissolved RDA.  The goal is to distribute the cash assets to 
the taxing entities during FY 12-13.  Once this review is completed and a “Finding of 
Completion” is issued by the DOF, loan repayment may begin. 
 
AB 1484 permits the Successor Agency to show disputed items on the ROPS pending 
resolution by the DOF and SA.  Staff has requested to meet and confer with the DOF 
regarding these items.  The Department of Finance changed the format of the ROPS and 
provided a new format on August 1, 2012.   
 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Maida Alcantara 
Director of Finance 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Elise M. McCaleb 
Economic Development Manager 
 
Attachment:   Resolution 
 
  Third ROPS:  January – June 2013 



Resolution No.  
August 23, 2012 

Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD OF THE 
CITY OF SIGNAL HILL, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A 
RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
(ROPS) PURSUANT TO HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
§34177 AND TRANSMITTING THE ROPS TO THE 
COUNTY AUDITOR-CONTROLLER, THE DEPARTMENT 
OF FINANCE, AND THE STATE CONTROLLER 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Signal Hill is a municipal corporation and a 

charter city organized and existing under the Constitution of the State of California 

(“City”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Signal Hill Community Redevelopment Agency 

(“Redevelopment Agency”) is a public body, corporate and politic, organized and 

existing under the California Community Redevelopment Law (Health & Safety Code §§ 

33000 et seq.); and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court issued 

its opinion in the case California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, 

etc., et al., Case No. S196861, and upheld the validity of Assembly Bill 1x26 (“AB1x26”) 

and invalidated Assembly Bill 1x27; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Court’s decision results in the implementation of AB1x26 

which dissolves all the redevelopment agencies in the State of California as of February 

1, 2012; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Oversight Board was established for purposes of 

assisting with winding-down the RDA under AB1x26; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a provision of AB1x 26, codified as Health and 

Safety Code Section 34176, the Oversight Board is required to approve a Recognized 



Resolution No.  
August 23, 2012 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) covering the period from January 1, 2013 

through June 30, 2013.  

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, the Oversight Board, resolves as follows: 

 

Section 1. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein. 

 
Section 2. The ROPS, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

reference as Exhibit “A”, is hereby adopted pursuant to Health & Safety Code Section 

34169(h). 

 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 23RD day of August, 2012. 
    

 
 
_________________________________ 

      DOUGLAS P. HAUBERT 
CHAIR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
KENNETH C. FARFSING 
SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No.  
August 23, 2012 

Page 3 of 3 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA   ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )ss. 
CITY OF SIGNAL HILL  ) 
 
  I, KENNETH C. FARFSING, Secretary of the  Oversight Board of the 
City of Signal Hill, California, hereby certify that Resolution No. ___________ was 
adopted by the Oversight Board of the City of Signal Hill at a regular meeting held on 
the 23rd day of August 2012, and that the same was adopted by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
 

  NOES: 
   
  ABSENT: 
   
  ABSTAIN:  
 
       __________________________ 
       KENNETH C. FARFSING 
       SECRETARY 
 

 



Successor Agency Contact Information

Name of Successor Agency:
City of Signal Hill as Successor Agency 
to Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency

County: Los Angeles

Primary Contact Name: Maida Alcantara
Primary Contact Title: Finance Director

Address
2175 Cherry Avenue Signal Hill CA 
90755

Contact Phone Number: 562-989-7319
Contact E-Mail Address: MAlcantara@cityofsignalhill.org

Secondary Contact Name: Kenneth Farfsing
Secondary Contact Title: City Manager
Secondary Contact Phone Number: 562-989-7302
Secondary Contact E-Mail Address: kfarfsing@cityofsignalhill.org



SUMMARY OF RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE
Filed for the January 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013 Period

Name of Successor Agency: City of Signal Hill as Successor Agency to Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency

Total Outstanding
Debt or Obligation

Outstanding Debt or Obligation 225,413,285$                          

Current Period Outstanding Debt or Obligation Six-Month Total

A 4,828,083                                
B 7,183,901                                
C 215,517                                   
D 7,399,418                                

Total Current Period Outstanding Debt or Obligation (A + B + C = E) Should be same amount as ROPS form six-month total 12,227,501$                            

E 7,400,000                                
F 582$                                        

Prior Period (January 1, 2012 through June 30, 2012)  Estimated vs. Actual Payments (as required in HSC section 34186 (a)) 

G 5,804,559                                
H 5,582,739                                
I Enter Actual Administrative Expenses Paid with RPTTF 221,820                                   
J Adjustment to Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund (G - (H + I) = J) -                                           

K Adjusted RPTTF (The total RPTTF requested shall be adjusted if actual obligations paid with RPTTF are less than the estimated obligation amount.) 7,399,418$                              

*Successor Agency's Estimate

Certification of Oversight Board Chairman:
Pursuant to Section 34177(m) of the Health and Safety code, Name Title
I hereby certify that the above is a true and accurate Recognized
Obligation Payment Schedule for the above named agency.

Signature Date

Available Revenues Other Than Anticipated RPTTF Funding 
Enforceable Obligations Funded with RPTTF
Administrative Allowance Funded with RPTTF

Enter Estimated Obligations Funded by RPTTF (Should be the lesser of Finance's approved RPTTF amount including admin allowance or the actual amount distributed)
Enter Actual Obligations Paid with RPTTF

Enter Total Six-Month Anticipated RPTTF Funding (Obtain from county auditor-controller)*
Variance (D - E =  F) Maximum RPTTF Allowable should not exceed Total Anticipated RPTTF Funding

Total RPTTF Funded (B + C = D)



Name of Successor Agency: City of Signal Hill as Successor Agency to Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency

County: Los Angeles Oversight Board Approval Date:

Item # Project Name / Debt Obligation
Contract/Agreement 

Execution Date
Contract/Agreement 

Termination Date Payee Description/Project Scope LMIHF
Bond 

Proceeds
Reserve 
Balance

Admin 
Allowance RPTTF Other Six-Month Total

225,534,655$       21,622,716$         750,000$         3,852,118$      -$                 215,517$         7,183,901$         225,965$         -$                    

1             2001 Tax Allocation Bonds 12/4/2001 10/1/2024 U.S. Bank National Association Refinancing Series 1994 TABs /Public Improvements Project No. 1 11,237,119           970,135                582,081              582,081              

2             
2003 Tax Allocation Parity Refunding 
Bonds, Series A 8/28/2003 10/1/2024 U.S. Bank National Association Refinancing Portion of Series 1993A/B TABs Project No. 1 14,219,085           2,818,374             1,691,024           1,691,024           

3             
2003 Tax Allocation Parity Bonds, 
Series C 12/11/2003 10/1/2024 U.S. Bank National Association Refinancing Portion of Series 1993A TABs Project No. 1 14,051,845           531,730                319,038              319,038              

4             
2003 Taxable  Allocation Parity Bonds, 
Series D 12/11/2003 10/1/2025 U.S. Bank National Association Property Acquisition-Las Brisas Housing Project No. 1 3,406,834             239,074                143,444              143,444              

5             
2006 Taxable Tax Allocation Parity 
Bonds, Series A 9/7/2006 10/1/2027 U.S. Bank National Association Property Acquisition Project No. 1 21,284,476           884,615                530,769              530,769              

6             
2007 Tax Allocation Refunding Parity 
Bonds, Series A 11/15/2007 10/1/2024 U.S. Bank National Association Refinancing Series 1993B TABs Project No. 1 19,337,897           707,704                424,622              424,622              

7             2009 Tax Allocation Parity Bonds 11/17/2009 10/1/2027 U.S. Bank National Association Construction of Police Station Project No. 1 28,843,819           1,629,750             977,850              977,850              

8             2011 Tax Allocation Parity Bonds 3/25/2011 10/1/2027 U.S. Bank National Association Construction of Library Project No. 1 13,683,666           938,981                563,389              563,389              

9             Trustee Fees Upon Issuance Through Bond Maturity US Bank National Association Trustee fees for Bonds Project No. 1 350,000                25,000                  10,000                10,000                

10           Contract Services - Financial 10/13/2000
On Going/ Through Bond 

Maturity Harrell & Company Advisors EOPS ROPS Consulting/Continuing Disclosure Project No. 1 55,500                  15,000                  8,000                  8,000                  
11           Contract Services - Property Tax Annual Contract Annual Contract HdL Companies Property Tax Audit/Information - Bonds Project No. 1 105,000                7,000                    3,500                  3,500                  
12           Contract Services - Legal 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire & Wynder Legal Counsel Services - Successor Agency Project No. 1 360,000                180,000                120,000              120,000              
13           Contract Services - Audit 12/29/2009 Ongoing Deihl Evans & Co/LSL Audit Services Project No. 1 255,000                17,000                  7,000                  7,000                  
14           Promissory Note 12/16/2010 12/15/2017 Alma Walker Trust Property Acquisition Project No. 1 589,100                100,400                50,200                50,200                
15           Promissory Note 12/10/1992 6/30/2013 Price Charitable Trust Property Acquisition Project No. 1 685,879                535,879                300,000              300,000              
16           Owner Participation Agreement 3/16/2011 3/16/2027 LBSH Parcel I LLC Tax Sharing Project No. 1 30,235,322           1,500,000             900,000              900,000              
17           Owner Participation Agreement 2/2/2010 12/31/2012 Delius Restaurant LLC Financial Assistance Project No. 1 50,000                  50,000                  -                      

18           Letter Agreement Expiring August 2012 5/27/2009 7/31/2012
Signal Hill Auto Center 
Association Auto Center Sign Lease and Maintenance Project No. 1 9,400                    9,400                    -                      

19           Carmax Deposit 5/22/2008 Upon Payment in Full Carmax Property Acquisition Project No. 1 6,004,000             -                        -                      
20           Contract Services 7/6/2010 Upon Completion Tunnel Productions Documentary - RDA History Project No. 1 9,552                    9,552                    -                      

21           Reimbursement Agreement 3/18/2008

Until Paid/Original End 
Date of Redevelopment 

Plan City of Signal Hill
Property Acquisition Project No. 1

8,225,165             -                        -                      

22           Reimbursement Agreement 1/17/2011

Until Paid/Original End 
Date of Redevelopment 

Plan City of Signal Hill
Development Impact Fees Project No. 1

3,000,000             -                        -                      

23           Housing Deferral Repayment 4/12/2005

Until Paid/Original End 
Date of Redevelopment 

Plan Housing Successor Agency
Pre-1986 Set Aside Deferral Project No. 1

3,472,864             -                        -                      
24           SERAF Loan 4/5/2011 Until Paid Housing Successor Agency Loan to Pay FY 10/11 SERAF Project No. 1 1,063,000             -                        -                      

25           
Property Disposition Costs:700 Spring 
St. / Anastasi Property 8/27/2010 Upon Completion Mearns Consulting Phase II - Anastasi Project No. 1 90,000                  90,000                  90,000                90,000                

26           
Property Disposition Costs:700 Spring 
St. / Anastasi Property 8/21/2009 Upon Completion Albus and Keefe, Inc. EQ Survey - Anastasi portion Project No. 1 206,656                206,656                206,656              206,656              

27           
Property Disposition Costs:700 Spring 
St. / Anastasi Property Upon Completion

Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards / Laurain Appraisal Costs Project No. 1 50,000                  40,000                40,000                

28           
Property Disposition Costs:700 Spring 
St. / Anastasi Property Upon Completion Lawyer's Title Title Costs Project No. 1 17,300                  -                      

29           
Property Disposition Costs:700 Spring 
St. / Anastasi Property Upon Completion

Lopez General Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. Maintenance / Weed Abatement Project No. 1 30,000                  -                      

30           
Property Disposition Costs:700 Spring 
St. / Anastasi Property Upon Completion City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 6,600                    -                      

31           
Property Disposition Costs:700 Spring 
St. / Anastasi Property 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire and Wynder, LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 27,000                  -                      

32           Property Disposition Costs:Sullivan Upon Completion
Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards Appraisal Project No. 1 13,000                  -                      

33           Property Disposition Costs:Sullivan Upon Completion Lawyer's Title Company Title Project No. 1 650                       -                      
34           Property Disposition Costs:Sullivan 7/21/2011 Upon Completion Albus Keefe & Associates EQ Survey - Follow Up Project No. 1 58,828                  58,828                  58,828                58,828                
35           Property Disposition Costs:Sullivan Upon Completion City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 3,300                    -                      
36           Property Disposition Costs:Sullivan 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire and Wynder LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 13,500                  -                      

37           
Property Disposition Costs: 3100 
California Upon Completion

Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards Appraisal Project No. 1 10,000                  -                      

38           
Property Disposition Costs: 3100 
California Upon Completion Lawyer's Title Company Title Costs Project No. 1 450                       -                      

39           
Property Disposition Costs: 3100 
California Upon Completion City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 1,650                    -                      

40           
Property Disposition Costs: 3100 
California 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire and Wynder LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 6,750                    -                      

41           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al Upon Completion
Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards / Laurain Appraisal Costs Project No. 1 29,000                  -                      

42           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al Upon Completion Lawyer's Title Company Title Costs Project No. 1 1,350                    -                      

43           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al Upon Completion
Lopez General Engineering 
Contracts, Inc. Maintenance / Weed Abatement Project No. 1 25,000                  25,000                  25,000                25,000                

44           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al
1/18/11 (Lease 

Agreement) Upon Lease Termination Palmer Security Deposit Project No. 1 10,000                  -                      

45           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al 1/1/11 (Lease Agreement) Upon Lease Termination Lund Security Deposit Project No. 1 6,725                    -                      

RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE (ROPS III)
January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013

Grand Total
Project Area

Total 
Outstanding Debt 

or Obligation

Funding Source
Total Due During 

Fiscal Year 
2012-13



Item # Project Name / Debt Obligation
Contract/Agreement 

Execution Date
Contract/Agreement 

Termination Date Payee Description/Project Scope LMIHF
Bond 

Proceeds
Reserve 
Balance

Admin 
Allowance RPTTF Other Six-Month TotalProject Area

Total 
Outstanding Debt 

or Obligation

Funding Source
Total Due During 

Fiscal Year 
2012-13

46           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al 1/29/09, 4/13/05, 8/3/09 Upon Lease Termination Walker Security Deposit Project No. 1 6,745                    -                      

47           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al Upon Completion City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 3,300                    -                      

48           Property Disposition Costs: Palmer, et al 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire and Wynder LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 13,500                  -                      

49           
Property Disposition Costs: 859 
Patterson/Boatyard Upon Completion

Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards / Laurain Appraisal Costs Project No. 1 8,000                    -                      

50           
Property Disposition Costs: 859 
Patterson/Boatyard Upon Completion Lawyer's Title Company Title Costs Project No. 1 450                       -                      

51           
Property Disposition Costs: 859 
Patterson/Boatyard Upon Completion City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 1,650                    -                      

52           
Property Disposition Costs: 859 
Patterson/Boatyard 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire and Wynder LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 6,750                    -                      

53           Property Disposition Costs: 1500 Hill St 8/27/2010 Upon Completion Mearns Consulting Hazardous Materials Consultant Project No. 1 869,545                -                      

54           Property Disposition Costs: 1500 Hill St 12/14/2011 Upon Completion Shober Consulting, Inc. Relocation of Tenants Project No. 1 120,000                -                      

55           Property Disposition Costs: 1500 Hill St Upon Completion
Lopez General Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. Demolition Project No. 1 416,556                -                      

56           Property Disposition Costs: 1500 Hill St Upon Completion Existing Tenants Relocation of Tenants - Hill St Housing Project Project No. 1 750,000                750,000                750,000           750,000              

57           
Property Disposition Costs: 2170 
Gundry 8/27/2010 Upon Completion Mearns Consulting Hazardous Materials Consultant Project No. 1 192,000                -                      

58           
Property Disposition Costs: 1500 
Hill/2170 Gundry Upon Completion City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 6,600                    -                      

59           
Property Disposition Costs: 1500 
Hill/2170 Gundry 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire and Wynder, LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 27,000                  -                      

60           
Property Disposition Costs: 1500 
Hill/2170 Gundry 11/03/04, 1/17/12 Upon Completion CORE / Berro Management Maintenance of Acquired Property Project No. 1 25,000                  -                      

61           
Property Disposition Costs: 1500 
Hill/2170 Gundry Upon Completion

Lopez General Engineering 
Contractors, Inc. Demolition Project No. 1 144,000                -                      

62           
Property Disposition Costs: 1400 E 
Spring St 8/27/2010 Upon Completion Mearns Consulting

Human Health Risk Assessment, Methane Assessment, 
Soil Management Plan Project No. 1

32,500                  32,500                  32,500                
63           Replacement Housing Obligations Upon Completion To Be Determined Replacement Housing Obligations Project No. 1 1,650,000             -                      

64           LA River Trash TMDL

John Hunter and Associates, 
Flow Science, Richard 
Montevideo and Associates.

Catch basin insert cleaning/inspection; Cherry Ave./Willow 
St. Trash clean-up; Pet waste station/Trail Head Clean Up; 
Hamilton Bowl Trash 

Project No. 1

75,300                  -                        

65           AB 939; NPDES Issues 6/22/2011 Upon Completion Richards Watson & Gershon Legal Counsel Project No. 1 12,500                  -                        -                      

66           Current MS4 Permit

John Hunter and Associates, 
Flow Science, Richard 
Montevideo and Associates.

Program Management, Water Discharge Oversight 
NPDES Restaurant Inspections Project No. 1

40,000                  -                        
67           Contract Services 10/5/2010 Upon Completion MWH Americas Recycled Water Facilities Project No. 1 75,000                  75,000                  75,000                75,000                
68           Contract Services - Legal 2/14/2006 Ongoing Aleshire & Wynder Legal Services - Project Related Project No. 1 300,000                25,000                25,000                
69           Contract Services - Environmental 8/27/2010 Upon Completion Susan Mearns Hazardous Materials Consultant Project No. 1 75,000                  -                      
70           Operating Lease 6/30/1988 11/30/2055 Robinett /Russell Property Lease - Robinett West Project No. 1 13,061,351           238,200                119,100           119,100              
71           Operating Lease 12/31/1993 12/31/2055 Robinett /Russell Property Lease - Robinett East Project No. 1 10,461,613           213,731                106,865           106,865              
72           Civic Center Phase I Construction 5/45/2010 Upon Completion Simplus Management Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 320,000                320,000                160,000           160,000              

73           Civic Center Phase I Construction 8/26/2008 Upon Completion WMM & Associates Architects Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 300,000                300,000                100,000           100,000              
74           Civic Center Phase I Construction 6/15/2010 Upon Completion 3QC Inc. Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 35,000                  35,000                  10,000             10,000                
75           Civic Center Phase I Construction 7/6/2010 Upon Completion Albus Keefe & Associates Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 60,000                  60,000                  30,000             30,000                
76           Civic Center Phase I Construction 8/27/2010 Upon Completion Susan Mearns Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 20,000                  20,000                  10,000             10,000                
77           Civic Center Phase I Construction Upon Completion Inspection Fees Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 6,000                    6,000                    2,000               2,000                  

78           Civic Center Phase I Construction Upon Completion
Demolition and Site 
Preparation Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 250,000                250,000                -                   -                      

79           Civic Center Phase I Construction Upon Completion Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 750,000                750,000                250,000           250,000              
80           Civic Center Phase I Construction Upon Completion Project Manager Costs Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 30,000                  30,000                  10,000             10,000                
81           Civic Center Phase I Construction 10/14/2010 Upon Completion Kemp Brothers Construction Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 5,550,000             5,550,000             2,850,000        2,850,000           
82           Civic Center Phase II Construction 5/18/10, 8/8/2011 Upon Completion Robert Coffee Architects Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 621,370                621,370                150,000           150,000              
83           Civic Center Phase II Construction 9/7/2011 Upon Completion Simplus Management Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 258,600                258,600                129,300           129,300              
84           Civic Center Phase II Construction 9/9/2011 Upon Completion Albus Keefe Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 30,000                  30,000                  20,000             20,000                
85           Civic Center Phase II Construction 9/9/2011 Upon Completion Susan Mearns Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 30,000                  30,000                  20,000             20,000                

86           Civic Center Phase II Construction Pending Upon Completion
Bond Related Construction 
Costs Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 7,254,805             -                        -                   -                      

87           Capital Project Upon Completion To Be Determined Encumbered/ Restrtcted 1994 Bond Funds Project No. 1 105,952                105,951                105,951           105,951              
88           Capital Project Upon Completion To Be Determined Encumbered/ Restrtcted 2001 Bond Funds Project No. 1 4,867                    4,867                    4,867               4,867                  
89           Administrative Cost Allowance City of Signal Hill Adminstrative Cost Allowance Project No. 1 391,419                391,419                215,517           215,517              



Name of Successor Agency: City of Signal Hill as Successor Agency to Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency
County: Los Angeles

Item #

1-8

10        FY 12-13 amount payable has been increased from $5,000 to $15,000

15        Total payable and FY 12-13 amount payable have been revised; payments continue until 6/30/13 sales tax has been paid

16        

17        Reduced total from July-December ROPS; agreement expires 12/31/12

19        Denied on prior ROPS, Under Appeal

21        

22        

23-24 Denied on prior ROPS, but allowable to repay Housing Successor under AB 1484

41        Denied on Prior ROPS, but property disposition cannot be completed without an appraisal

43        Total payable and FY 12-13 amount payable have been increased from $10,000 to $25,000

56        Encumbered LMIHF

62        Additional property disposition costs

63        Denied on prior ROPS, Under Appeal

72        Total payable in FY 12-13 revised from $480,000 to $320,000

72-87 Met and Discussed Civic Center Phase II construction with Department of Finance on August 16, 2012.  Department of Finance representatives were:  Chris Hill, Justin Howard, Steve Szaley, and Sen. Lowenthal's Chief of Staff, Josh Tooker.

Notes/Comments

RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE (ROPS III) -- Notes (Optional)
January 1, 2013 through June 30, 2013

Estimate 60% of annual RPTTF to be received in January, includes 60% of Debt Service Due April 1, 2013 and October 1, 2013.  To be remitted to the Trustee immediately to comply with Indenture but allow Successor Agency not to default on subordinate 
obligations. Balance of 40% will be included in July-December 2013 ROPS.  See tab "Debt Service"

Reimbursement Agreement between the former Redevelopment Agency and the City to be reinstated pending finding of completion; outstanding balance recalculated based on LAIF rate back to inception.  See tab "City Loan"

Reimbursement Agreement between the former Redevelopment Agency and the City to be reinstated pending finding of completion

60% of estimated payment due July 2013. Balance of 40% will be included in July-December 2013 ROPS. 



Name of Successor Agency: City of Signal Hill as Successor Agency to Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency

County: Los Angeles

Line Project Name / Debt Obligation Payee Description/Project Scope Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual
810,892$             47,956$                17,594,957$        1,613,914$           1,383,405$          475,011$              339,259$             221,820$              13,009,652$         5,582,739$           263,784$              254,984$             

1 1       2001 Tax Allocation Bonds U.S. Bank National AssociaRefinancing Series 1994 TABs /Public Impro Project No. 1 972,448                606,215                

1 2       
2003 Tax Allocation Parity Refunding 
Bonds, Series A

U.S. Bank National 
Association

Refinancing Portion of Series 1993A/B 
TABs Project No. 1 2,811,917             1,425,152             

1 3       
2003 Tax Allocation Parity Bonds, 
Series C

U.S. Bank National 
Association Refinancing Portion of Series 1993A TABs Project No. 1 529,705                330,953                

1 4       
2003 Taxable  Allocation Parity 
Bonds, Series D

U.S. Bank National 
Association Property Acquisition-Las Brisas Housing Project No. 1 239,496                239,497                

1 5       
2006 Taxable Tax Allocation Parity 
Bonds, Series A

U.S. Bank National 
Association Property Acquisition Project No. 1 888,545                549,672                

1 6       
2007 Tax Allocation Refunding Parity 
Bonds, Series A

U.S. Bank National 
Association Refinancing Series 1993B TABs Project No. 1 707,104                524,635                

1 7       2009 Tax Allocation Parity Bonds
U.S. Bank National 
Association Construction of Police Station Project No. 1 -                       -                       1,630,150             857,362                26,113                 

1 8       2011 Tax Allocation Parity Bonds
U.S. Bank National 
Association Construction of Library Project No. 1 -                       -                       942,306                504,942                211                      

1 9       
SB 211 Payment - County of Los 
Angeles County of Los Angeles Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 1,114,630             152,352                

1 10     
SB 211 Payment - County Fire 
Protection District

County Fire Protection 
District Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 471,700                -                       

1 11     
SB 211 Payment - County Flood 
Control District

County Flood Control 
District Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 42,100                  -                       

1 12     
SB 211 Payment - Greater LA CO 
Vector Control

Greater LA CO Vector 
Control Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 4,000                    -                       

1 13     SB 211 Payment - Co Sanit Dist No 3 Co Sanit Dist No 3 Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 200                       -                       

1 14     
SB 211 Payment - Co Sanit Dist No 
29 Co Sanit Dist No 29 Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 23,800                  -                       

1 15     SB 211 Payment - Signal Hill Signal Hill Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 164,500                -                       

1 16     
SB 211 Payment - Central Basin 
MWD Central Basin MWD Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 10,900                  -                       

1 17     
SB 211 Payment - Water 
Replenishment District

Water Replenishment 
District Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 400                       -                       

1 18     
SB 211 Payment - County Office of 
Education County Office of Education Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 10,900                  -                       

1 19     
SB 211 Payment - Long Beach 
Community College

Long Beach Community 
College Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 71,400                  -                       

1 20     
SB 211 Payment - Long Beach 
Unified School District

Long Beach Unified 
School District Tax Sharing Pursuant to Section 33607.7 Project No. 1 497,900                -                       

1 21     Reimbursement Agreement City of Signal Hill Property Acquisition Project No. 1 -                       

1 22     Promissory Note Alma Walker Trust Property Acquisition Project No. 1 50,200                  50,200                  

1 23     Promissory Note Price Charitable Trust Property Acquisition Project No. 1 240,923                215,860                

1 24     Owner Participation Agreement LBSH Parcel I LLC Tax Sharing Project No. 1 1,500,000             -                       

1 25     Reimbursement Agreement City of Signal Hill Development Impact Fees Project No. 1 -                       

1 26     Housing Deferral Repayment Low Mod Housing Fund
Pre-1986 Set Aside Deferral

Project No. 1 -                       

1 27     SERAF Loan Low Mod Housing Fund
Loan to Pay FY 10/11 SERAF

Project No. 1 -                       

1 28     Property Tax Collection Fees County of Los Angeles SB 2557 Fees Project No. 1 600                       441                       

1 29     Operating Lease Robinett /Russell Property Lease - Robinett West Project No. 1 125,070                99,084                 

1 30     Operating Lease Robinett /Russell Property Lease - Robinett East Project No. 1 138,714                101,055               

2 1       Promissory Note HNL Properties LLC Property Acquisition/Demo/Cleanup Project No. 1 300,000               300,000                

2 2       Owner Participation Agreement Delius Restaurant LLC Financial Assistance Project No. 1 49,998                 48,332                  

2 3       
Letter Agreement Expiring August 
2012

Signal Hill Auto Center 
Association

Auto Center Sign Lease and Maintenance
Project No. 1 57,042                  55,257                  

2 4       Contract Services Tunnel Productions Documentary - RDA History Project No. 1 20,055                 -                       

2 5       Oil Field Issues As Needed Consulting on Oil Field/Well Closures Project No. 1 368,274               19,410                  

Page/Form
Grand Total

LMIHF Bond Proceeds Reserve Balance Admin Allowance RPTTF Other

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 34186 (a)
PRIOR PERIOD ESTIMATED OBLIGATIONS vs. ACTUAL PAYMENTS  

RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE (ROPS I)
January 1, 2012 through June 30, 2012

Project Area



Line Project Name / Debt Obligation Payee Description/Project Scope Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate ActualPage/Form

LMIHF Bond Proceeds Reserve Balance Admin Allowance RPTTF Other

Project Area

2 6       Contract Services MWH Americas Recycled Water Facilities Project No. 1 180,000               32,363                  

2 7       Contract Services - Legal Aleshire & Wynder Legal Services - Project Related Project No. 1 106,872               22,832                  

2 8       Contract Services - Legal Aleshire & Wynder
Legal Counsel Services - Successor 
Agency Project No. 1 19,450                  120,000               62,469                  

2 9       Contract Services - Audit Deihl Evans & Co/LSL Audit Services Project No. 1 7,250                   5,322                    

2 10     Contract Services - Property Tax HdL Companies
Property Tax Audit/Information - Bonds

Project No. 1 6,906                    

2 11     Contract Services - Environmental Susan Mearns
Hazardous Materials Consultant

Project No. 1 -                       

2 12     Contract Services - Financial
Harrell & Company 
Advisors

EOPS ROPS Consulting/Continuing 
Disclosure Project No. 1 6,130                    10,680                  

2 13     Contract Services - Other As Needed Other Consulting Services as Needed Project No. 1 45,000                 20,622                  

2 14     Contract Services - Appraisal Edwards & Laurain Appraisal for Property Acquisition Project No. 1 35,000                 15,200                  

2 15     Property Management Lopez
Maintenance of Various Acquired Property

Project No. 1 30,000                 -                       

2 16     Carmax Property Maintenance Various Contractors Maintenance of Acquired Property Project No. 1 30,000                 5,100                    

2 17     Trustee Fees
US Bank National 
Association

Trustee fees for Bonds
Project No. 1 13,750                  11,189                  

2 18     Property Acquisition Carmax Acquire Property for HNL Properties Project No. 1 -                       

2 19     HELP Loan HELP Loan Fund
Reimburse for HELP Loan Debt Service

Project No. 1 200,000               -                       

2 20     Carmax Deposit Carmax Property Acquisition Project No. 1 -                       

2 21     Project Costs To be Determined Encumbered Bond Funds (1994;2001) Project No. 1 101,393               -                       -                       

2 22     Cooperative Agreement City of Signal Hill
Staff Salaries and Benefits (Non Housing)

Project No. 1 203,604               152,434                -                       

2 23     Cooperative Agreement City of Signal Hill Materials and Supplies Project No. 1 15,263                 7,054                    -                       

2 24     Cooperative Agreement City of Signal Hill Marketing Program Project No. 1 8,405                   1,595                    

2 25     Compensated Absences City of Signal Hill Compensated Absences Project No. 1 2,943                   -                       -                       

2 26     Police Facility Construction Simplus Management Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 67,342                 411,338                

2 27     Police Facility Construction
WMM & Associates 
Architects

Bond Funded Capital Project
Project No. 1 485,823               137,969                

2 28     Police Facility Construction 3QC Inc. Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 16,325                 7,423                    

2 29     Police Facility Construction Albus Keefe & Associates
Bond Funded Capital Project

Project No. 1 117,800               103,269                

2 30     Police Facility Construction Susan Mearns Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 15,000                 3,310                    

2 31     Police Facility Construction Inspection Fees Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 10,000                 

2 32     Police Facility Construction
Demolition and Site 
Preparation

Bond Funded Capital Project
Project No. 1 500,000               8,160                    

2 33     Police Facility Construction Landscape Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 80,000                 5,000                    

2 34     Police Facility Construction
Furniture, Fixtures, 
Equipment

Bond Funded Capital Project
Project No. 1 1,088,850            152,173                

2 35     Police Facility Construction Project Manager Costs
Bond Funded Capital Project

Project No. 1 100,000               13,305                  

2 36     Police Facility Construction FTR Construction Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 7,455,932            609,267                

2 37     Police Facility Construction Various Contractors Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 -                       

3 1       
1850 E. 28th Street - Public Parking 
Lot RKA Consulting Group Public Parking Lot Project No. 1

3 2       LA River Trash TMDL

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

Catch basin insert cleaning/inspection; 
Cherry Ave./Willow St. Trash clean-up; Pet 
waste station/Trail Head Clean Up; 
Hamilton Bowl Trash Project No. 1

3 3       AB 939; NPDES Issues
Richards Watson & 
Gershon Legal Counsel Project No. 1

3 4       Current MS4 Permit

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

Program Management, Water Discharge 
Oversight NPDES Restaurant Inspections

Project No. 1



Line Project Name / Debt Obligation Payee Description/Project Scope Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate ActualPage/Form

LMIHF Bond Proceeds Reserve Balance Admin Allowance RPTTF Other

Project Area

3 5       New/Separate MS4 Permit 

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

General new program set-up; additional 
monitoring; additional inspections

Project No. 1

3 6       Dry Weather Diversion Study 

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

Planning and Preliminary Engineering 
Phases

Project No. 1

3 7       LA River Metals TMDL 

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

Reach 1 Implementation Plan, Metal 
Handling Facility Inspections, adoption and 
Implementation of LID Program, Site 
Specific Objectives, LA River Monitoring 
Program Project No. 1

3 8       LA River Bacteria TMDL

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

Research and analysis

Project No. 1

3 9       LA Harbor Toxics TMDL

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

Research and analysis

Project No. 1

3 10     Storm Water Quality Master Plan 

John Hunter and 
Associates, Flow Science, 
Richard Montevideo and 
Associates.

Comprehensive planning study

Project No. 1

3 11     700 Spring St. / Anastasi Property Mearns Consulting Phase II - Anastasi Project No. 1

3 12     700 Spring St. / Anastasi Property Albus and Keefe, Inc. EQ Survey - Anastasi portion Project No. 1

3 13     700 Spring St. / Anastasi Property
Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards / Laurain Appraisal Costs Project No. 1

3 14     700 Spring St. / Anastasi Property Lawyer's Title
Title Costs

Project No. 1 17,200                  

3 15     700 Spring St. / Anastasi Property

Lopez General 
Engineering Contractors, 
Inc.

Maintenance / Weed Abatement
Project No. 1 15,780                  

3 16     700 Spring St. / Anastasi Property City of Signal Hill
Staff Salaries and Benefits

Project No. 1

3 17     700 Spring St. / Anastasi Property Aleshire and Wynder, LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 3,115                   

3 18     3100 California Avenue Property
Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards Appraisal Project No. 1

3 19     3100 California Avenue Property Lawyer's Title Company Title Costs Project No. 1

3 20     3100 California Avenue Property City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1

3 21     3100 California Avenue Property Aleshire and Wynder LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 2,980                   

3 22     Sullivan Property
Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards Appraisal Project No. 1 19,528                 

3 23     Sullivan Property Lawyer's Title Company Title Project No. 1

3 24     Sullivan Property Albus Keefe & Associates EQ Survey - Follow Up Project No. 1

3 25     Sullivan Property City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1

3 26     Sullivan Property Aleshire and Wynder LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1

4 1       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties

Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards / Laurain

Appraisal Costs
Project No. 1 -                       

4 2       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties Lawyer's Title Company

Title Costs
Project No. 1 -                       

4 3       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties

Lopez General 
Engineering Contracts, 
Inc.

Maintenance / Weed Abatement
Project No. 1 -                       2,898                   

4 4       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties Palmer 

Security Deposit
Project No. 1 -                       



Line Project Name / Debt Obligation Payee Description/Project Scope Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate Actual Estimate ActualPage/Form

LMIHF Bond Proceeds Reserve Balance Admin Allowance RPTTF Other

Project Area

4 5       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties Lund 

Security Deposit
Project No. 1 -                       

4 6       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties Walker

Security Deposit
Project No. 1 -                       

4 7       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties City of Signal Hill

Staff Salaries and Benefits
Project No. 1 -                       

4 8       
Palmer  - Grinder, Hertz, Walker, 
Lund, American Appliance Properties Aleshire and Wynder LLP

Legal Counsel
Project No. 1 -                       

4 9       
859 Patterson Street / Boatyard - Sell 
to EDCO

Flavell, Tennenbaum & 
Edwards / Laurain Appraisal Costs Project No. 1 -                       

4 10     
859 Patterson Street / Boatyard - Sell 
to EDCO Lawyer's Title Company Title Costs Project No. 1 -                       

4 11     
859 Patterson Street / Boatyard - Sell 
to EDCO City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 -                       

4 12     
859 Patterson Street / Boatyard - Sell 
to EDCO Aleshire and Wynder LLP Legal Counsel Project No. 1 -                       

4 13     Library Construction Robert Coffee Architects
Bond Funded Capital Project

Project No. 1 700,000               147,617                

4 14     Library Construction Simplus Management Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 1,298,327            9,083                    

4 15     Library Construction Albus Keefe Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 147,895               -                       

4 16     Library Construction Susan Mearns Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 99,758                 -                       

4 17     Library Construction
Bond Related Construction 
Costs Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 5,310,512            -                       

4 18     Library Construction Various Bond Funded Capital Project Project No. 1 -                       6,000                    -                       

5 1       Housing Rehab Grants Eligible Property Owners Rehab Low and Mod Housing Units Project No. 1 46,069                 5,000                    

5 2       Relocation Payments Existing Tenants
Relocation of Tenants - Hill St Housing 
Project Project No. 1 661,149               -                       

5 3       
Low and Moderate Income Housing 
Program Various

Programs Pursuant to 33334.2 and 
33334.6 Project No. 1

5 4       HELP Loan
California Housing 
Finance Auth HELP Loan Project No. 1 -                       

5 5       20% Set Aside Low Mod Housing Fund
Requirement per CRL 33334.2 and 
33334.6 Project No. 1 -                       

5 6       Property Management
CORE / Berro 
Management Maintenance of Acquired Property Project No. 1 -                       

5 7       1500 Hill St. - environmental Mearns Consulting Hazardous Materials Consultant Project No. 1 -                       740                       -                       

5 8       2170 Gundry - environmental Mearns Consulting Hazardous Materials Consultant Project No. 1 -                       5,554                    -                       

5 9       1500  Relocation Shober Consulting, Inc. Relocation of Tenants Project No. 1 -                       -                       

5 10     1500 Demolition

Lopez General 
Engineering Contractors, 
Inc.

Demolition
Project No. 1 -                       -                       

5 11     2170 Gundry - Demolition

Lopez General 
Engineering Contractors, 
Inc.

Demolition
Project No. 1 -                       -                       

5 12     Staff Time City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits Project No. 1 -                       -                       

5 13     Legal Counsel - Housing Aleshire and Wynder, LLP
Legal Counsel

Project No. 1 -                       17,097                  -                       

5 14     Cooperative Agreement City of Signal Hill Staff Salaries and Benefits (Housing) Project No. 1 103,674               19,565                  -                       



 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF SIGNAL HILL 
OVERSIGHT BOARD 

2175 Cherry Avenue ● Signal Hill, California 90755-3799 
 
August 23, 2012 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
TO:   HONORABLE CHAIR 

AND MEMBERS OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
     
FROM:   KENNETH C. FARFSING 
  CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 
  
SUBJECT: TITLE CORRECTION FOR 2003 TRANSFER OF ALAMITOS PUMPING 

PLANT PROPERTY  
 
Summary: 
 
The need for a technical title correction has arisen in connection with the 2003 “Takeover 
Agreement” through which County Sanitation District No. 29 (the “District”) assumed 
ownership and maintenance over Signal Hill’s Sewage Facilities.  As part of the 2003 
Takeover Agreement, the City transferred title of the Alamitos Pumping Plant (2001 
Alamitos Avenue; “Property”) to the District, but title to the Property actually was held by the 
Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency.  The District now needs to clear its title to the Property 
in order to qualify for a low-interest state clean water loan. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Waive further reading and adopt the following resolution, entitled: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD FOR THE CITY OF 
SIGNAL HILL SUCCESSOR AGENCY DIRECTING AND 
APPROVING THE TRANSFER OF GOVERNMENTAL PROPERTY 
AT 2001 ALAMITOS AVENUE TO CORRECT A 2003 TITLE ERROR  

 
The Resolution approves the Successor Agency’s action on August 21, 2012 to deed the 
Property to the District as originally intended by the 2003 Takeover Agreement, and directs 
the Successor Agency to execute the transfer.  
  
 



Alamitos Pumping Plant 
August 23, 2012 
Page 2 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None.   
 
Background and Analysis: 
   
In 2003, County Sanitation District No. 29 (“District”) assumed ownership and maintenance 
for Signal Hill’s sewerage facilities (consisting of pumping facilities and the property on 
which they are located as well as the actual sewer) in exchange for the District’s ongoing 
operation of those facilities. As set out in the Takeover Agreement, the City intended to 
grant to the District “all right title and interest” to the real property on which the pumping 
facilities are located, in addition to transferring certain easements needed for operation of 
the sewage facilities (see Exhibit “B” to the Takeover Agreement as well as Section 1 of 
that Agreement).   
 
The District presently is applying for a low-interest State clean water loan for the Alamitos 
Pumping Plant and construction of a new parallel line several thousand feet in length, a 
project which will benefit the residents and businesses of Signal Hill. The loan requires that 
the entity applying for the grant have clear title to that property. In the course of gathering 
the documentation for the grant, counsel for the District discovered that the real property 
underlying the Alamitos Pumping Plant (legally described in the attachment to the Transfer 
Deed) had been transferred to the District in 2003 by the City when title to the property 
actually lay with the Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency.  
 
In order to obtain the loan, the title now must be transferred from the Successor Agency to 
the District as soon as possible. Given the requirements of ABx1 26 and AB 1484 this 
requires a different process than it would have in 2003.  Fortunately, District Counsel, the 
Signal Hill City Attorney’s office and the Staff of both entities have been able to work 
together to agree on an immediate process for transfer, as explained below.  The 
Successor Agency approved the transfer of the Property to the District at its meeting on 
August 21, 2012.   
 
In general, the trailer bill requires that before property is transferred, there must be an audit 
of such property, a finding of completion by the Department of Finance (“DOF”) and 
approval of a long-range property management plan by the Oversight Board and the DOF. 
However, there is an exception to those requirements for transfers of property for 
governmental use.  Health & Safety Code Section 34191.3 states: “…the requirements [for 
asset disposition by the successor agency with approval of or at the direction of the 
Oversight Board] shall be suspended, except as those provisions apply to the transfers for 
governmental use, until the DOF has approved a long-range property management plan…”   
 
Criteria for Transfer of Governmental Property:  
 
The criteria for the transfer of governmental property are set out in Health & Safety Code 
Section 34181(a): “… the oversight board may instead direct the successor agency to 
transfer ownership of those assets that were constructed and used for a governmental 
purpose…to the appropriate public jurisdiction pursuant to any existing agreements relating 



Alamitos Pumping Plant 
August 23, 2012 
Page 3 
 
to the construction or use of such an asset….”  
 
The property transferred under the Takeover Agreement specifically is described as 
governmental property dedicated for public use and the Alamitos Pumping Plant Property 
continues to be used as the site of the Alamitos Pumping Plant.  The 2003 Takeover 
Agreement is the existing agreement providing for the transfer of the land and pumping 
plan and, thereafter, its use by the District to operate the Signal Hill sewer system.  The 
consideration for the transfer is the ongoing operation of the system; there is no 
compensation that would be owing to the Successor Agency and/or other taxing agencies, 
as this simply is the correction of a title error.  
 
After approval by the Oversight Board, the Resolutions approving such transfer must be 
sent to DOF, which will determine within the five-day period thereafter whether or not it 
wishes to review the transfer. Assuming no request for review within that period by DOF, 
the action becomes final and title insurance can be provided.  Were DOF to request review 
of the action, it has up to 60 days for its review.  Thereafter, absent an objection by DOF, 
the action may be relied upon by all persons as conclusive.   
 
Staff has given 10 days prior notice of the Oversight Board consideration of this transfer by 
posting on the Successor Agency website as required by Health & Safety Code sections 
34181(f) and 34179(f).   
 
Attached are the following:  1) Proposed Resolution of the Oversight Board approving the 
Successor Agency action; 2) 2003 Takeover Agreement; 3) the Transfer Deed.  
 
 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Maida Alcantara 
Administrative Services Officer   
 
Prepared by: 
 
Jeff M. Malawy 
Assistant Oversight Board Counsel 
 
 



Page 1 of 5 

RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OVERSIGHT BOARD FOR THE CITY 
OF SIGNAL HILL SUCCESSOR AGENCY APPROVING THE 
TRANSER OF GOVERNMENTAL PROPERTY AT 2001 
ALAMITOS AVENUE TO CORRECT A 2003 TITLE ERROR  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of ABx1 26, effective June 29, 2011, 

and as upheld by the California Supreme Court in CRA v. Matosantos, redevelopment 

agencies were dissolved effective February 1, 2012; and  

 

 WHEREAS, before dissolution, the entity which formed a redevelopment 

agency could pursuant to Health & Safety Code Sections 34171(j) and 34173, the City 

of Signal Hill serves as the successor agency to the former redevelopment agency; and 

 

 WHEREAS, certain successor agency actions as set out in ABx1 26 are 

reviewed and approved by an oversight board composed of representatives of taxing 

agencies within the jurisdiction of the successor agency as set out in Health & Safety 

Code Section 34179; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Oversight Board for the Successor Agency of the City of 

Signal Hill commenced its existence on or about February 3, 2012; and  

 

 WHEREAS, effective June 27, 2012, ABx1 26 was amended by AB 1484 (the 

“trailer bill”), which sets out new processes, responsibilities, time frames and 

requirements for the Successor Agency and Oversight Board, including the audit and 

listing of such property and a finding of completion for the Successor Agency by the 

Department of Finance, and thereafter the approval of a long-range property 

management plan by the Oversight Board and the Department of Finance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the requirements for completion of such process 

as set out in Health &Safety Code Sections 34191 et seq, there is an exception in 

Section 34191.3 which allows the transfer of governmental property before completion 



Page 2 of 5 

of the finding of completion or approval of the long range property management plan, 

based upon action by the Successor Agency, as directed and approved by the 

Oversight Board and reviewed by the Department of Finance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 34191.3 states: “…the requirements [for asset 

disposition by the successor agency with approval of or at the direction of the Oversight 

Board] shall be suspended, except as those provisions apply to the transfers for 
governmental use, until the Department of Finance has approved a long-range 

property management plan…”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the transfer of such governmental property meets the criteria set 

out in Health &Safety Code Section 34181(a): “…the oversight board may instead direct 

the successor agency to transfer ownership of those assets that were constructed and 

used for a governmental purpose…to the appropriate public jurisdiction pursuant to any 

existing agreements relating to the construction or use of such an asset….”; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the 2003 Agreement between the City of Signal Hill and County 

Sanitation District No. 29 (the “District”) provides for the repair, improvement, and 

transfer of ownership to the District of the Alamitos Pumping Plant and the real property 

underlying it (located at 2001 Alamitos Avenue), as well as the transfer of certain 

easement and other Existing Sewerage Facilities (the “Takeover Agreement”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Takeover Agreement is an existing agreement which 

continues to be performed by the District for its intended governmental and public 

purpose; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a recently-discovered title error occurred in such transfer in that 

the real property under the Alamitos Pumping Plant was intended to be transferred by 

the City but actually was owned by the Redevelopment Agency; and  

 



Page 3 of 5 

 WHEREAS, the need to correct this error immediately has arisen because the 

District is obtaining a low-interest State clean water loan for improvements to the 

property which will benefit the residents of Signal Hill (among others) and which 

requires clear title to the underlying real property to be benefitted by the loan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, staff also has provided a 10-day notice of this action as required 

by Health and Safety Code Section 34181(f) by posting on the Successor Agency 

website as provided by Health & Safety Code Section 34179(f); and 

 
 WHEREAS, notice of this proposed action also has been provided to the Los 

Angeles County Administrative Office, the County Auditor-Controller and the 

Department of Finance as required by Health & Safety Code Section 34180(j); and  

 

 WHEREAS, upon approval by the Oversight Board, a copy of this Resolution 

shall be submitted to the County Auditor-Controller, the State Controller and the 

Department of Finance and posted on the successor agency’s website; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Department of Finance has five calendar days in which to 

determine whether or not it wishes to review the action by the Successor Agency and 

Oversight Board and thereafter, up to 60 days to review the transaction, after which 

time, it may be relied upon as conclusive by any person.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Oversight Board does resolve as follows: 

 
1. The findings set out above are true and correct and the criteria for a 

governmental transfer in Health & Safety Code Section 34181 have been 
met.  The Oversight Board specifically finds that, in accordance with 
Health & Safety Code Section 34181(a), the repair, improvement and 
transfer of ownership to the District of the Alamitos Pumping Plant and the 
real property underlying it, as well as the transfer of certain easement and 
other Existing Sewerage Facilities directly serves as a “governmental 
purpose” necessary for the provision of public sewer infrastructure and 
services, as such governmental purpose was originally established in the 
2003 Takeover Agreement. 

 



Page 4 of 5 

2. The Oversight Board, having examined the information before it, hereby 
directs the Successor Agency to transfer the property to correct title to it 
by execution of the deed set out as Exhibit “A” to this Resolution. 

 
3. Functioning as staff to the Oversight Board, the Successor Agency staff is 

authorized and directed to take any and all necessary actions to 
implement the provisions of this Resolution.  

 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of August, 2012.   
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
DOUGLAS P. HAUBERT 
CHAIR 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
KENNETH C. FARFSING 
SECRETARY 
 
 



Page 5 of 5 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA       ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )ss. 
CITY OF SIGNAL HILL          ) 
 

 I, KENNETH C. FARFSING, Secretary of the Signal Hill Oversight Board, 
of the City of Signal Hill hereby certify that Resolution No. ___________ was adopted 
by the Signal Hill Oversight Board at a special meeting held on the 21st day of August 
2012, and that the same was adopted by the following vote:   
 

 AYES: 
 

 NOES: 
 

 ABSENT: 
 

 ABSTAIN: 
 
 

__________________________ 
KENNETH C. FARFSING 
SECRETARY 

































































4838-8425-0128.1  

 

 

 
Recording Requested By and:   

When Recorded, Return To: 

 

COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICTS 

OF LOS ANGELES COUNTY 

1955 Workman Mill Road 

Whittier, CA 90601 

Attention: Margarita Cabrera 

 
 SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

Documentary Transfer Taxes Are Zero Dollars. 

The Grantee in this conveyance is 

a California Public Entity.  Revenue and Taxation 

Code Section 11922.      
 

 

 

GRANT DEED 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIGNAL HILL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY, a public 

agency and successor in interest to City of Signal Hill Redevelopment Agency, a dissolved public body 

subject to Section 34173 of the California Health & Safety Code (“Grantor”), hereby grants to COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT NO. 29 OF LOS ANGELES COUNTY, a county sanitation district organized 

and existing under the provisions of the County Sanitation District Act, Health & Safety Code § 4700 et seq. 

("Grantee"), all rights, title, and interest acquired under and by virtue of that certain CORPORATION 

GRANT DEED dated December 28, 1983, recorded as Instrument No. 84-211705 on February 21, 1984 in 

the office of the Recorder of the County of Los Angeles, State of California, and attached as Exhibit 1. 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIGNAL HILL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY is signing 

this Grant Deed on          , 2012. 

 

 CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIGNAL 

HILL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 By:  

Kenneth C. Farfsing  

Chief Administrative Officer 

  

 

(Signature to be notarized) 

 

 

 

 

Grant Deed No.     1208              Parcel No:      7215-009-900   

 

Project :  Alamitos Pumping Plant    







        June 14, 2012 Minutes of the Oversight Board 
         Page 1 of 6 
 

    
 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
SIGNAL HILL OVERSIGHT BOARD 

June 14, 2012 
 

A Regular Meeting of the Signal Hill Oversight Board was held in the Council Chamber 
of City Hall on June 14, 2012. 
 
CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 PRESENT: CHAIR HAUBERT 
    VICE CHAIR NOLL 
    MEMBER CHERNISS 
    MEMBER GABEL 
    MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
    MEMBER YU 
         
 ABSENT: MEMBER WAROT 
        
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Chair Haubert led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
PUBLIC BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR ON ITEMS NOT LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
 
 Carol Churchill, Signal Hill resident addressed the Oversight Board regarding the 

Department of Finance and the ROPS schedule. 
 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORTS 
  

a. Bylaws 
 

 Chief Administrative Officer introduced the Redevelopment/Economic 
Development Manager who presented the staff report. 
 
Chair Haubert summarized the reason for the bylaws. 
 

 It was moved by MEMBER CHERNISS and seconded by VICE CHAIR NOLL to 
approve the bylaws of the Oversight Board of the City of Signal Hill Successor 
Agency. 

 



        June 14, 2012 Minutes of the Oversight Board 
         Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 

 
 The following vote resulted: 
 
 AYES: CHAIR HAUBERT 

    VICE CHAIR NOLL 
    MEMBER CHERNISS 
    MEMBER GABEL 
    MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
    MEMBER YU 

      
   NOES: NONE 
 
  ABSENT:  MEMBER WAROT 
 
  ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
b.  Issues Regarding Legal Representation of Oversight Board 

 
Chief Administrative Officer introduced David Aleshire, legal counsel for the 
Successor Agency who presented the staff report. 
 
Oversight Board discussed their legal representation. 
 
Carol Churchill, Signal Hill resident addressed the Oversight Board regarding 
their legal representation. 
 
It was moved by VICE CHAIR NOLL and seconded by MEMBER YU to select 
Option 1 as outlined in the memorandum to use the Successor Agency as legal 
counsel because it is most economical and provides for the Oversight Board 
(OB) to seek outside counsel should the OB believe that there are significant 
conflicts between the OB and Signal Hill Successor Agency. 
 

 The following vote resulted: 
 
 AYES: CHAIR HAUBERT 

    VICE CHAIR NOLL 
    MEMBER CHERNISS 
    MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
    MEMBER YU 

      
   NOES: MEMBER GABEL 
 
  ABSENT:  MEMBER WAROT 
 
  ABSTAIN: NONE 

 
 
 
 



        June 14, 2012 Minutes of the Oversight Board 
         Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 
 
 

c.  Request to Repurchase Property at 2099 E. 27th Street to 2701 St. Louis 
Avenue 

 
Chief Administrative Officer introduced Redevelopment/Economic Development 
Manager who presented the staff report. 
 
Successor Agency Counsel commented on the terms of the lease with the 
Lunds. 
 
The Oversight Board discussed the terms of the lease and the offer to 
repurchase and asked questions.  Successor Agency Counsel and 
Redevelopment/Economic Development Manager addressed questions. 
 
Mary and Philicia Lund addressed the Oversight Board regarding the offer to 
repurchase property and the terms of the lease. 
 
Successor Agency Counsel addressed several comments made by the Lunds. 
 
It was moved by MEMBER CHERNISS and seconded by MEMBER GABEL to 
deny the request from the Lunds to repurchase their previously owned property 
based upon the price offered and their request to withhold rental income 
payments and recommend the approval of an appraisal of the property to 
determine its current fair market value. 
 

 The following vote resulted: 
 
 AYES: CHAIR HAUBERT 

    VICE CHAIR NOLL 
    MEMBER CHERNISS 
    MEMBER GABEL 
    MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
    MEMBER YU 

      
   NOES: NONE 
 
  ABSENT:  MEMBER WAROT 
 
  ABSTAIN: NONE 

 
d.  CarMax Information 

 
Chief Administrative Officer presented the staff report and Successor Agency 
Counsel commented on the CarMax project. 
 
The Oversight Board discussed the CarMax project and asked questions.  
Successor Agency Counsel addressed questions. 
 



        June 14, 2012 Minutes of the Oversight Board 
         Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 
 
Matt Lamishaw, Legal Counsel for CarMax addressed the Oversight Board 
regarding the CarMax project. 
 
Bob Mendoza, Signal Hill resident addressed the Oversight Board regarding the 
CarMax project. 
 
Chair Haubert commented on the CarMax project and suggested the Oversight 
Board direct staff to request additional information from the Department of 
Finance as to why the amount was denied. 
 
The Oversight Board discussed the CarMax project. 
 
It was moved by CHAIR HAUBERT and seconded by MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
to direct staff to request information from the California Department of Finance 
regarding their determination that the CarMax note is not an enforceable 
obligation. 
 

 The following vote resulted: 
 
 AYES: CHAIR HAUBERT 

    VICE CHAIR NOLL 
    MEMBER CHERNISS 
    MEMBER GABEL 
    MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
    MEMBER YU 

      
   NOES: NONE 
 
  ABSENT:  MEMBER WAROT 
 
  ABSTAIN: NONE 

 
ORAL REPORTS 
 

a.  Update on Walker Building Damage 
 
Chief Administrative Officer and Redevelopment/Economic Development 
Manager presented an oral report. 

 
b.  Tour of Real Estate Holdings 

 
Chief Administrative Officer presented an oral report. 
 
Oversight Board discussed the real estate properties and a possible 
informational tour of the property sites. 
 
 
 



        June 14, 2012 Minutes of the Oversight Board 
         Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 
 
Gloria Nava, Signal Hill resident asked about the properties.  Chief 
Administrative Officer and Redevelopment/Economic Development Manager 
addressed the question. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

a.  Minutes of the Following Meeting(s) 
 
Special Meeting of the Oversight Board, April 25, 2012. 
 
Regular Meeting of the Oversight Board, May 23, 2012. 
 
MEMBER GABEL requested the statement from the meeting of May 23, 2012 
be attached to the minutes. 
 
It was moved by VICE CHAIR NOLL and seconded by MEMBER CHERNISS to 
approve the Consent Calendar. 
 

 The following vote resulted: 
 
 AYES: CHAIR HAUBERT 

    VICE CHAIR NOLL 
    MEMBER CHERNISS 
    MEMBER GABEL 
    MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
    MEMBER YU 

      
   NOES: NONE 
 
  ABSENT:  MEMBER WAROT 
 
  ABSTAIN: NONE 

 
OVERSIGHT BOARD – NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Member Cherniss requested information regarding the appeal process for the 
Department of Finance at the next meeting. 

 
 Member Gabel requested a list of the items on the ROPS that were not 

approved by the Department of Finance. 
 
 Chair Haubert requested a list of the ROPS at each meeting to monitor 

progress. 
 
 
 
 
 



        June 14, 2012 Minutes of the Oversight Board 
         Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT  
 
  It was moved by MEMBER GABEL and seconded by MEMBER WILLIAMSON 

to adjourn tonight’s meeting to the next regular meeting to be held on Thursday, 
July 12, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall, 2175 Cherry 
Avenue, Signal Hill, CA  90755. 

 
 The following vote resulted: 
 
    AYES: CHAIR HAUBERT 
    VICE CHAIR NOLL 
    MEMBER CHERNISS 
    MEMBER GABEL 
    MEMBER WILLIAMSON 
    MEMBER YU 
      
   NOES: NONE 
 
  ABSENT:  MEMBER WAROT 
 
  ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
 CHAIR HAUBERT adjourned the meeting at 7:43 p.m. 
 
 
 

             
       Douglas P. Haubert 
       Chair 

  
 
 Attest: 

 
  
 ___________________________ 
 Kenneth C. Farfsing 
 Chief Administrative Officer, 
 Board Secretary 




